From:FORO LAW OFFICES 509 927 1301 07/24/2014 11:02 

NO. 31255-1-III 

SUPREME COURT. 
OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

PAVELALEKSENTSEV 

Petitioner/Defendant, 

v. 

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL and HEALTH SERICES; ADULT 
PROTECTIVE SERVICES, 

Respondent. 

PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW of DECISION 
TERMINATING REVIEW 

Drew D. Dalton, WSBA No. 39306 

#441 P.002/049 

FILED. 
JUL 2 4 2014 
COURr U~ \l'l·EALS 

DlV!SlU.'i II 
~~ATE . !INGTON 

Of Attorneys for Petitioner Pavel Aleksentsev 

FORD LAW OFFICES, P.S. 

320 S. Sullivan Rd. 
Spokane Valley, WA 99037 
Tel. 509.924.2400 

xxii 

07/24/2014 10:52 Ho.: R491 

fF u [L te lQ) 
AUG 1 3 2014 

CLERK OF THE SUPREME COURT

IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

·Petitioner is Pavel Aleksentsev, a Russian immigrant living in 

Spokane, Washington. This petition is being filed on his behalf by 

Drew D. Dalton WSBA 39306, of Ford Law Offices, PS. 320 S. 

Sullivan Rd., Spokane Valley, WA 99037. 

CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Review is requested of case no. 31255-1-111. In re: Pavel 

Aleksentsev, Court of Appeals Division Three. The original 

decision was filed May 8, 2014. A motion to publish was filed by a 

non-party on May 19, 2014. The court of appeals issued an 

ORDER denying Petitioner's on June 3, 2014. The court then 
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informed petitioner's counsel, and an appeal could not be filed until 

the motion to publish had been decided. RAP 13.4 The court of 

appeals filed an order denying the motion to publish on June 26, 

2014. 

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

Issue No.1 

A. The court did not address Connie's testimony that there was 
no harm from the events. Hr. Tr. 50:3 & 14 

Issues pertaining to Issue of Fact No.1 

1. If the vulnerable person does not believe she was 
harassed, how can the court make a finding of abuse? 

2. If Connie testified it was "comical", how is Mr. 
Aleksentsev to know what he was doing would cause 
harm. 

Issue No.2 Definition of Harassment/Abuse 

B. The Court did not apply the law to the facts. 

Issues pertaining to Assignment of Error No.2 

1. Intent to harm, control, abuse is required by the petitioner 
even if willfulness is not. 

2. The Court did not address the legislative intent as 
expressed in RCW 7 4.34.200(2) and its application to 
this and all other cases. 

xxvi 
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Issue of Law Discrimination/Due Process 

C. The Court should not allow a finding of fact to stand when it 
could be the basis for a due process violation in a case. 

Issues pertaining to Assignment of Error No.3 

1. The issue is; did the court's finding of fact, regarding the 
lack of an interpreter during the investigation, potentially 
quell Mr. Aleksentsev's right to due process and 
discriminate against him based on his origins? 

APPLICABLE LAW 

The burden of proof, in this matter, is this matter 

before the Board was the preponderance of the evidence. 

Despite the burden of proof, ALJ proceedings proceed under 

the same civil and/or criminal rules that would apply to those 

proceedings. See WAC 388-02-0485 & 388-71-02155. 

The primary issues in this case center on the 

department's definitions of Mental Abuse. These definitions 

are found in RCW 74.34.020(2)(c) & WAC 388-71-0105: 

RCW 74.34.020(2)(c) states: 

(c) "Mental abuse" means any willful action or inaction 
of mental or verbal abuse. Mental abuse includes, 
but is not limited to, coercion, harassment, 
inappropriately isolating a vulnerable adult from 
family, friends, or regular activity, and verbal assault 
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that includes ridiculing, intimidating, yelling or 
swearing. 

WAC 388-71-0105 states: Willful means "the non
accidental action or inaction by an alleged perpetrator 
that he/she knew or reasonably should have known 
would cause harm, injury or a negative outcome." 

The court of appeals reviews an agency order under 

RCW 34.05.570(3), which provides, in part, that we must 
' 

grant relief if the agency has erroneously interpreted or 

applied the law ... or is not supported by substantial evidence. 

Brown v. DSHS, 145 Wn. App. 177,187 (2003). The factual 

review is confined to the record before the administrative law 

judge and board. RCW 34.05.558; Port of Seattle v. 

Pollution Control Hearings Bd., 151 Wn. 2d 568, 587 (2004). 

We apply de novo review to statutory interpretation 

questions. W. Telepage, Inc. v. City of Tacoma, 140 

Wash.2d 599, 607 (2000). Our primary goal is "to ascertain 

and give effect to legislative intent."State v. Pac. Health Ctr .. 

Inc., 135 Wash.App. 149, 158-59 (2006). Legislative intent 

is determined primarily from the statutory language, viewed 

"in the context of the overall legislative scheme." 

Subcontractors and Suppliers Collection Servs. 
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v. McConnachie,106 Wash.App. 738,741, (2001). If the 

statute's meaning is plain on its face, we give effect to that 

plain meaning. Dep't of Ecology v. Campbell & Gwinn, 

L.L.C., 146 Wash.2d 1, 9-10, (2002). 

The legislative intent/scheme is found in RCW 

7 4.34.200(2). 

(2) It is the intent of the legislature, however, that 
where there is a dispute about the care or treatment 
of a vulnerable adult, the parties should use the least 
formal means available to try to resolve the 
dispute. Where feasible, parties are encouraged but 
not mandated to employ direct discussion with the 
health care provider, use of the long-term care 
ombuds or other intermediaries, and, when 
necessary, recourse through licensing or other 
regulatory authorities. (emphasis added). 

There is no evidence the Department tried any less formal 

means to resolve this case when they were clearly available. 

xxix 
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The relevant facts are as follows: In October 2008 

Appellant was hired to work with Connie. Connie is 

classified as a vulnerable adult as she receives home care 

under RCW 74.34.020(15). Certified Appellate Board 

Record (CAB) at 24. No one disputes that Appellant was a 

good care worker for the first five or so months of his work 

with Connie. At about the five month mark Mr. Aleksentsev 

gave a one month notice that he would not work for Connie 

any more. Hr. Tr. 96-97. Mr. Aleksentsev testified he was 

injured in December 2008. Hr. Tr. pg 102. He testified 

working for Connie was hard and he tried to get her to get 

another caregiver. ld. Shortly after, he told them he was 

leaving, on March 19, 2009, a complaint was filed against 

Appellant regarding his conduct with Connie. CAB at 4. 

This was after his injury and one month notice he was 

leaving. 

The transcripts to the first hearing were lost. A 

second hearing was held on February 15, 2011. There were 

three main issues discussed at hearing. One issue was an 

1 
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audio recording on his phone that had curse words. He 

testified he did not play the tape for her. 2/15/11 Hr. Tr. (TR) 

20:11-13. Connie's testimony corroborates Appellant's in 

that she states she was in the same room, but never had he 

actually played it for her. Tr. 47:9-10 & 53:21-25. 

Appellant testified that when she told him not to do 

something, he stopped doing it. Connie corroborated this 

testimony. Hr. Tr. 50:14-16. Connie testified there was only 

one day he used the word "bitches." He was confronted, and 

he never said the word again to her. Hr. Tr. 57:9-25. She 

testified he was "not a foul mouthed man." ld. 

The second issue was the baby talk audio. Appellant 

confirmed that Connie told him Katy (sic Cathy) had played it 

for her several times. Hr. Tr. 23:23-25. Appellant 

consistently denied playing the audio for Connie. He does 

not deny that the audio got sent to Cathy. Hr. Tr. 23:20-22. 

The third incident involved the optometrist. 

Appellant took Connie from the Optometrist to Arby's 

for food before taking her home. Petitioner testified that he 

took her there because he saw she was shaking. Hr. Tr. 99. 

2 
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He thought her blood sugar was low and he needed to act 

on his training. I d. Connie testified Appellant joked a lot, was 

immature and childish but that she never felt abused by him. 

Hr. Tr. 49 & 50. This is important as Mr. Crusch testified she 

had no cognitive difficulties. Hr. Tr. 69:20. 

Ms. Pakou Lee testified that Connie was not 

threatened, frightened or concerned with Mr. Aleksentev's 

care. Hr. Tr. 43-44. She wanted him to remain her 

caregiver. ld. She told Ms. Lee that she thought all the 

differences were cultural issues. and Mr. Aleksentsev 

listened to her and she could handle him. ld. Connie also 

testified she was never more than annoyed by Mr. 

Aleksentsev's actions. Hr. Tr. 59. 

Appellant is an immigrant from Russia. His native 

language is Russian. He has two weeks formal education in 

the English language. Hr. Tr. 103. He testified he asked for 

an interpreter with Curt Crusch and that he did not 

understand the gist of the meeting. Hr. Tr. 16-17. He still did 

not know the purpose of it at the Board hearing several 

years later. ld. He required an interpreter at both hearings 

3 
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with Judge Stewart. Curt Crusch, the investigator, refused to 

provide an interpreter for Appellant. Appellant asked ·three 

times for an interpreter. I d. Mr. Crusch admitted Appellant 

had difficulty with at least one definition while talking to him 

during the investigation. Tr. 75: 6-7. When questioned 

about his investigative techniques Judge Stewart prevented 

counsel from confronting Mr. Crusch. Judge Stewart stated, 

"I am not going to put the APS investigator on trial here. 

They're supposed to find fault, that's what their job is ... we 

are not talking about any defects in the investigation." Hr. Tr. 

86:1-5. This is troubling, as in the previous hearing, it is 

clear there were issues with the investigative techniques of 

Mr. Crusch and Ms. Lee. CAB at 103-104. 

ARGUMENT 

Petitioner asserts three reasons why the court should review 

this decision. (1) The decision in this case is in conflict with current 

case law found at Brown v. DSHS, 145 Wn. App. at 182. This case 

uses facts where the caregiver, like Brown, was trying to help the 

protected person, yet, a finding of abuse was inappropriately made. 

(2) This case involves a substantial public interest in the application 

4 
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of statutes to infringe on their rights to work with DSHS, and how 

the Department is expected to act with regards to its clients and 

caregivers, and (3) there is an important issue of law regarding 

whether Mr. Aleksentsev's denial of an interpreter at stages of the 

investigation violated his constitutional rights. Petitioner asks the 

court to reverse the Court of Appeals decision as it does not apply 

the law to the facts of the case to the law. These issues are 

addressed through the argument below. 

I. Connie Testified There Was No Harm 

Regarding the facts of this case Division Ill expressly 

noted 

"Connie testified that she did not feel frightened or 
intimidated by Mr. Aleksentsev, but was annoyed by his 
actions. She did not believe he was trying to hurt her, but did 
state that the incidents caused her stress and wore her out 
emotionally." Court of Appeals Decision pg 3. 

This statement of the facts is supported by the record. 

Connie testified Mr. Aleksentsev used the word bitches 

one day when he came to work. Her recollection of the 

event was that "It was almost comical. .. a bit juvenile." Hr. 

Tr. 50:3 & 14. Her recollection of the event is that he came 

5 
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into work, and she overheard him saying "those bitches

those bitches." Hr. Tr. 50:16. When Connie overheard him, 

she told Mr. Aleksentsev not to say that word and he 

stopped. ld. In the transcript and in the exhibits, there is no 

other testimony that he willfully swore or directed the term 

bitches at Connie in order to harass, intimidate, harm or 

otherwise. In other words, there was no intent to harm. 

Without intent to harm, there can be no abuse finding. 

Further, Connie said she overheard him using the 

language and he stopped immediately and never personally 

swore again. ld. This shows his desire to do what she asks. 

Connie also testified that she was never frightened annoyed 

or intimidated by Mr. Aleksentsev. ld. at 59. She said 

"annoyed pretty much covers it." ld. She also told Mr. 

Crusch, l&l, investigator that there were no issues. She 

testifi~d she did not disagree with that statement. /d. 

This is consistent with Ms. Pakou lee's testimony. At the 

hearing Pakou Lee, case manager for Connie's care, 

testified that Connie told her she wanted Mr. Aleksentsev to 

remain her caregiver. Connie believed that Mr. 

6 
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Aleksentsev's issues were merely cultural differences, and 

she can tell him to behave and he will. ld. at 43-44. While 

the audio tape may have annoyed her it was not abusive or 

intended to cause harm. All the testimony is consistent in 

that she wanted him to return to work. There is also no 

abuse where there is no hann. Harm is more than testimony 

of merely being annoyed. 

Connie wanted Mr. Aleksetsev to remain her caregiver. 

She told the manager that. She liked him and thought they 

were a good fit. There are no facts that find Mr. Aleksentsev 

actually caused Connie harm. This is of substantial public 

interest. Courts and finders of fact should not be allowed to 

put words in someone's mouth. If the testimony says there 

was no harm, there is no harm. The case must be reversed. 

II. Definition of Harassment is not consistent with the 
Court's findings and Mr. Aleksentsev's Intent 

We do not disagree that a willful action or inaction can be 

considered abuse. However, the statute says that said 

action is defined by specific words. These are: 

7 
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Mental abuse includes, but is not limited to, coercion, 
harassment, inappropriately isolating a vulnerable adult from 
family, friends, or regular activity, and verbal assault that 
includes ridiculing, intimidating, yelling or swearing. RCW 
74.34.020(2)(c). 

Applying the law, the Department must show that Mr. 

Aleksentsev tried to coerce, harass, verbally assault or 

isolate Connie consistent with RCW 74.34.020(c). Connie 

testified, Mr. Aleksentsev never swore at her. She told him 

not to use the word "bitches", and he did not. The testimony 

showed that, despite any differences, she wanted Mr. 

Aleksentsev to remain her caregiver. There is no evidence 

of abuse in this case. 

During the second incident, he was listening to a file sent 

to his phone. Once he heard her ask him to stop, he did. 

Again, we have separate incidents, not related, and 

separated by weeks if not more. The intent of Mr. 

Aleksentsev was not to abuse or cause harm. In fact, as 

soon as he knew it was a problem he stopped both times. 

This is directly contrary to a finding that he "knew or should 

have known" the actions would cause harm component of 

the statute. This was not addressed by the court. Petitioner 

should not be deprived of his ability to work just because of a 

8 
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disagreement. Also Connie testified she was nothing more 

than "annoyed" with his conduct. Annoyance is not defined 

as abuse. 

It is concerning that a protected person can say they had 

no problem, yet, the Department can find improper conduct. 

This is a stretch of the powers the DSHS was given by the 

legislature. 

Finally, the third event was when he drove her home from 

the optometrist. Mr. Aleksentsev testified that he took her to 

get food because she was shaking. That he had been 

trained by DSHS that was a bad sign for elderly people. It 

was a sign of low blood sugar and they needed to eat 

immediately. So, despite her protests he took her to Arby's 

to get food. Hr. Tr. at 99-100. Should he have taken her 

home? NO. His training told him otherwise. He was trying as 

quickly as possible to get her food. Despite her protests, he 

did the right thing. Using this event against him is not 

consistent with Brown v. Department of Social & Health 

Services., 145 Wn. App. 177, 183 (2008). The court held 

willful action must be "improper action." The court should 

9 
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have applied its own case law as here it was not improper to 

treat her low blood sugar level despite her protest. This 

event cannot be used against him. He even paid for the 

food because he was worried about her. Hr. Tr. at 99-1 00. 

It defies reason to call acts of kindness and compassion 

abuse. Where do we stop if that is the case? 

His acts in this instance are consistent with the Brown 

case. He was acting for the welfare of his client. One 

cannot be abusive if he was following his training. The client 

may not like the act, but if it was done to stabilize her health 

it was in her best interest. The Court of Appeals did not 

address this fact or aspect of the case. Thus, the decision 

should be overturned. 

A. INTENT TO HARM 

The court also disregarded the definitions of 

mental/emotional abuse provided from the psychological 

literature. While an expert may not be required, there has to 

be more than just a misunderstanding to constitute abuse. 

These experts establish that mental abuse requires 

repetitive acts of control. 

10 
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Furthermore, in the psychological field, Mental abuse 

is defined by leading experts Tomison and Tucci: as 

"characterized by a climate or pattern of behavior(s) 

occurring over time [ ... ] Thus, 'sustained' and 'repetitive' are 

the crucial components of any definition of emotional abuse." 

Tucci. 1997. Emotional Abuse: The Hidden Form of 

Maltreatment. Issues in Child Abuse Prevention Number 8 

Spring 1997. Another expert, Andrew Vachss, an author, 

attorney' and former sex crimes investigator, defines 

emotional abuse as "the systematic diminishment of another. 

It may be intentional or subconscious (or both), but it is 

always a course of conduct, not a single event." Vachss. 

Andrew. 1994. "You carry the Cure In your Own Heart." 

Parade, 28 August 1994. See page 1. 

To establish a finding of mental abuse; it requires both 

intent on the part of the actor and a pattern of behavior. This 

did not exist in this case. At best we have one incident 

regarding the baby talk audio. The first instance was 

personal swearing which he discontinued. The third was for 

her health and so cannot be abuse. As there is no pattern of 

11 
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abuse, only a pattern of listening, caring and trying to do 

what is best, the law requires a finding in his favor. 

The court should not adjudicate the law in a way that is 

not consistent with the statute as written. That voids the 

intent of the legislature as stated in RCW 74.34.200(2). The 

legislature intended to protect vulnerable adults, not have 

every complaint end up in court with an abuse finding. RCW 

7 4.34.200(2) states that the legislature's intent is for the 

least formal means available to be used. This means, if two 

parties do not get along, don't have them work together. It 

does not require a court case to change the situation. DSHS 

did not try a less formal means to resolve the issues 

between client and provider. In a business situation, there 

would simply been a discussion and possibly a 

reassignment, so they did not continue to interact. 

Termination and prohibition from ever working again are not 

likely out comes in the business world. Mr. Aleksentsev and 

Connie would have likely agreed to part ways. There were 

so many ways to resolve this without litigation. Yet, the 

Department failed in its obligation to resolve these cases as 

easily as possible. 

12 
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Unfortunately, the case law is usurping the legislature's 

intent, and each and every time an employee disagrees with 

a vulnerable adult or says something they do not like, we 

end up with an abuse finding. There is no case law 

interpreting RCW 7 4.34.200(2). The result is costly and 

frankly absurd. This is not what was intended. The 

legislature put the means here for DSHS to protect, but not 

to overreach. Every disagreement between people does not 

constitute reason to terminate an employee. 

Ultimately, if the courts do not tie the required requisite 

intent for the harm to a specific pattern of behavior, we 

create a system that ends up with absurd results, i.e. 

everyone can be fired for any action regardless of the intent 

behind the action. To protect vulnerable adults, we do not 

need every willful action to be prosecuted. Only the actions 

that have the requisite intent to harm and a pattern of 

behavior that supports the finding. Mr. Aleksentsev had no 

intent to harm. His behavior ,in one of the incidents, was to 

help because of what he perceived as low blood sugar. 

Connie, the vulnerable adult, wanted him to stay her 

caregiver. She testified, she was never more than annoyed 
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with him. The evidence also showed, she believed that any 

differences in understanding were cultural or language 

based. The abuse finding is not supported by the facts or 

the law. 

Ill. Mr. Aleksentsev Was Denied Due Process by the 
Department Failing to Provide him an Interpreter 

For this court, it does not matter if the Judge found Mr. 

Aleksentsev can understand some English. The finding of fact is 

suspect. The Judge stated that it is the investigator's job to find 

fault. If it is his job to find fault, then he cannot be trusted to 

interview someone without an interpreter to ensure communication 

is happening properly. Further, the actions by DSHS seem to 

indicate they were looking for blood. Mr. Aleksentsev testified he 

was hurt in December at work. That he could not do the job. So, 

he gave his one month notice. About the time he was suppose to 

leave, they hit him with an abuse complaint. Then, they did not 

provide him with an interpreter when he said he did not understand 

what the investigation was for. Even at the hearing, he still did not 

know.

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