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

Administrative Law Judge affi1med the Department's finding of mental 

abuse and Mr. Aleksentsev appealed. The Administrative Law Judge 

found the testimony of Connie to be credible and the testimony of Mr. 

Aleksentsev "not credible in any material respect." RP 39-40. Mr. 

Aleksentsev timely requested judicial review of the administrative 

decisions. The Superior Court upheld the finding of mental abuse. Mr. 

Aleksentsev then appealed to Division III of the Court of Appeals. On 

May 8, 2014, the Court of Appeals issued a decision affirming the 

administrative finding that Mr. Aleksentsev mentally abused a vulnerable 

adult. Mr. Aleksentsev now seeks discretionary review of this decision. 

III. ARGUMENT 

Adult Protective Services found that Mr. Aleksentsev mentally 

abused Connie. This finding was supported by substantial evidence in the 

record. This case is not in conflict with another Court of Appeals or 

Supreme Court decision and presents no significant question of 

constitutional law or issue of substantial public interest. Mr. 

Aleksentsev's petition for discretionary review should be denied. 

A. Grounds for Review 

This Court accepts review of decisions terminating review 

pursuant to a petition for discretionary review under RAP 13.4 (b). Mr. 
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Aleksentsev's petition does not meet any of RAP 13.4(b)'s bases for 

Supreme Court review. 

The Court of Appeals decision does not conflict with other 

decisions of this court or the Court of Appeals, nor does this case involve 

an issue of substantial public interest. Mr. Aleksentsev's due process 

argument appears to be an attempt to invoke RAP 13.4(b)(3), which 

permits review if a significant question of law under the state or federal 

constitution is at issue. That argument is unfounded and does not warrant 

further review. His remaining arguments do not meet the requirements of 

RAP 13.4(b) and so his petition must be denied. 

B. The Court of Appeals Decision Is Not in Conflict with a 
Decision of the Court of Appeals or the Supreme Court. 

Mr. Aleksentsev argues the appellate decision here is in conflict 

with Brown v. DSHS, 145 Wn. App. 177, 185 P.3d 1210 (2008). Petition 

for Discretionary Review at 4. The Court of Appeals decision is not in 

conflict with Brown v. DSHS and so the petition must be denied. 

In Brown v. DSHS, the Court of Appeals overturned a finding of 

abuse of a vulnerable adult, but that case involved facts very different 

from those at issue here. 145 Wn. App. at 185. In that case, the finding of 

abuse was based on an incident when a caregiver intervened when a 

resident became agitated and violent. The caregiver pushed the resident to 
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the ground and held her down until the resident became calm. Id at 181. 

The court determined such actions did not constitute abuse because 

"[h]ere, no improper action is shown. Ms. Brown properly intervened in 

the presence of danger to herself, her co-workers, and another vulnerable 

adult resident." !d. at 185. Here, Mr. Aleksentsev's actions were not 

motivated by a need to protect others, nor were they otherwise justified. 

Mr. Aleksentsev does not offer a justification for his use of vulgar 

terms to describe women or his repeated replaying of a recording he knew 

was upsetting to Connie. RP 50, HR 155, 161, 180. He asserted that his 

repeated refusal to take Connie home after a doctor's appointment, forcing 

her to "almost have a fit, uh, to get to go home," as motivated by a desire 

to avoid low blood sugar, RP'48, but'his repeated refusal to take her home 

was not solely because he was looking out for her best interests. Mr. 

Aleksentsev admits he took Connie to both Arby's and Lowe's. HR 99. 

While stopping for food could be related to a concern about low blood 

sugar, Mr. Aleksentsev provides no legitimate justification for stopping at 

Lowe's. Furthermore, Connie stated she asked to remain in the van but 

Mr. Aleksentsev, "got me out and did what he wanted." HR 113 (emphasis 

added). Connie stated Mr. Aleksentsev's behavior as "unacceptable and 

offensive." RP 62. 
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Mr. Aleksentsev's testimony directly conflicted with Connie's. 

Because of inconsistencies between Mr. Aleksentsev's statements to Mr. 

Crusch and his testimony, combined with Mr. Aleksentsev's evasive 

testimony at the administrative hearing, the Administrative Law Judge 

found him to be "not credible in any material respect." HR 40. The review 

judge upheld this finding. HR 12-13. Evidence of credibility should not 

be reevaluated on appeal. Kraft v. Dep't of Soc. & Health Servs., 145 Wn. 

App. 708,717, 187 P.2d 708 (2008). 

Connie described Mr. Aleksentsev's behavior as "emotional 

abuse." RP 51. Connie testified the behavior of Mr. Aleksentsev was 

stressful and that she was afraid that stress would negatively affect her 

multiple sclerosis. RP 49, 62. Connie reported to Mr. Crusch, "I shouldn't 

have to tell him (Mr. Aleksentsev) three times to take me home. He is 

supposed to be there to help me, not make things worse for me. I am just 

worn out after being around him sometimes." HR 149. Connie testified, "I 

was feeling mentally and physically exhausted. And maybe I-I am more 

vulnerable with MS and stress." RP 63. 

As the Court of Appeals observed, Mr. Aleksentsev's use of 

profane language, playing of the vulgar message, and "dragging" Connie 

along extra stops over her objection were not "necessary to the 
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perfmmance of Mr. Aleksentsev's job and did not serve a higher purpose" 

unlike the caregiver in Brown. Slip Op. at 8. 

None of the behaviors described above were to serve a higher 

purpo~e such as protecting the client or others. Nor were they necessary in 

the performance of Mr. Aleksentsev's duties. As found by the ALJ, the 

Board of Appeals, the Superior Court and by the Court of Appeals, Mr. 

Aleksentsev behavior was improper and resulted in mental abuse of 

Connie. No conflict with Brown v. Department of Social and Health 

Services exists. 

C. No Issue of Substantial Public Interest Exists Because 
Substantial Evidence Supports the Finding of Intent to Harm 
and Actual Harm to Connie 

When an appellate court reviews an administrative decision or 

action, the procedures and standards for review are governed by the 

Administrative Procedures Act (APA). RCW 34.05.510, 570; Kraft v. 

Department of Social and Health Services, 145 Wn. App. 708, 187 P .2d 

708 (2008). The burden of establishing the invalidity of the agency action 

is on the appellant and relief may be granted "only if [the court] 

determines that a person seeking judicial relief has been substantially 

prejudiced by the action complained of." RCW 34.05.570(1)(a)(d). 

Review of findings of fact is confined to whether they are 

supported by substantial evidence. RCW 34.05.570(3)(e). "We will sustain 
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findings of fact if substantial evidence supports them, i.e. evidence 

sufficient to persuade a fair-minded person the finding is true." Goldsmith 

v. Department of Social and Health Services, 169 Wn. App. 573, 280 P.3d 

1173 (2012), citing City of Redmond v. Cent. Puget Sound Growth Mgmt. 

Hrg's Bd., 136 Wn.2d 38, 959 P.2d 1091(1988). The statute does direct the 

court, however, to make its assessment of"substantiality" on the basis of the 

"whole record" - i.e., to ask the question simply of whether there are 

sufficient facts in the record from which a reasonable person could make the 

same finding as the agency. The court may not "engage in re-weighing 

evidence of credibility and demeanor." Franklin County v. Sellers, 97 

Wn.2d 317,330,646 P.2d 113 (1982), cert. denied, 495 U.S. 1106 (1983). 

"We do not weigh witness credibility or substitute our judgment for the 

agency's findings of fact." Goldsmith at 584, citing Brown v. Dep 't ofSoc. & . 

Health Servs., 145 Wn. App. 177, 182, 185 P.3d 1210 (2008). Substantial 

evidence supports the finding that Mr. Aleksentsev knew his improper 

behavior could cause harm and that such actions harmed Connie. 

It is undisputed that Mr. Aleksentsev was on notice that vulgar 

language disturbed Connie. He admitted Connie asked him to stop using 

vulgar terms such as "bitches" and he stopped saying that word around 

her. HR 161, RP 50. Despite his awareness of her sensitivity to profanity, 

Mr. Aleksentsev repeatedly played an audio/video recording containing 
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even more profane and disturbing language in Connie's presence. HR 

161. As to the doctor's visit incident, Connie told him not once, but three 

times that she wanted to return home after the appointment. Mr. 

Aleksentsev knew his. refusal to take her home was causing her distress. 

Mr. Aleksentsev selectively quotes testimony that support his 

arguments while ignoring the findings of the administrative law judge and 

affitmed on judicial review. Connie herself described Mr. Aleksentsev's 

behavior as "emotional abuse." RP 51. Connie testified his behavior was 

stressful and that she was afraid that stress would negatively affect her 

health. RP 49, 62. The court considered all of the testimony of the 

witnesses and agreed evidence supported a finding that Mr. Aleksentsev 

both intended to and did harm Connie. Connie's testimony alone clearly 

shows she was harmed by his behavior. Again, simply because contrary 

testimony exists, it does not mean the findings are unsupported or that the 

judge "put words in someone mouth", as argued by Mr. Aleksentsev. Pet. 

7. The court did not engage in inappropriate behavior and no issue of 

substantial public interest exists in this case. 

· D. The Department Did Not Refuse to Provide Interpreter 
Services to Mr. Aleksentsev, Nor was He Denied Due Process 
or Discriminated Against 

When Mr. Crusch interviewed Mr. Aleksentsev, he arrived alone, 

but he had previously been advised he could bring someone with him. 
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RP 75. Mr. Aleksentsev was told he was being interviewed because of a 

report from the community alleging mental abuse. HR 150. Mr. 

Aleksentsev was read the definition of a vulnerable adult, abuse and 

mental abuse. RP 75, HR 150. Mr. Aleksentsev told Mr. Crusch he did 

not understand the definitions due to having a language barrier. RP 75, HR 

150. Despite reporting this "language barrier", Mr. Aleksentsev did not 

request an interpreter. HR 150, RP 75. Mr. Crusch restated the meanings 

and gave examples. Mr. Aleksentsev then reported he understood the 

meanings. HR 150, RP 75. 

At no time after this interview or prior to the administrative 

hearing did Mr. Aleksentsev request another interview with an interpreter 

or complain to the Department he did not understand the interview process 

due to a lack of an interpreter. Mr. Aleksentsev even had an attorney 

contact the Depattment on April 1, 2009, and the attorney did not object to 

the interview process because of the lack of an interpreter. HR 151. 

Mr. Aleksentsev understood the questions posed by Mr. Crusch as 

he had explanations for each allegation. HR 150-151. Mr. Crusch 

testified, "at no time did I (sic) appear as there was a language barrier · 

where we couldn't communicate. And it had never been stated to me that 

he needed an interpreter while working with Connie and talking with her 

and her mother or Pakou." RP 75. 
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Pakou Lee, Connie's case manager, testified she met with Mr. 

Aleksentsev a few times at the Department prior to the allegation of 

mental abuse. RP 36-37. Mr. Aleksentsev did not request an interpreter 

during any of those meetings. HR 37. It did not appear to Ms. Lee that 

Mr. Aleksentsev had trouble understanding what was being communicated 

to him. RP 37. Mr. Aleksentsev also met with Ms. Lee's supervisor and 

appeared to understand the supervisor as well. Mr. Aleksentsev "had 

questions and asked questions." RP 37. 

Neither Connie nor Mr. Aleksentsev ever reported to Ms. Lee there 

was a language barrier between them. RP 3 7. Connie stated in her 

testimony when asked if she could communicate clearly with Mr. 

Aleksentsev she thought they could communicate extremely well. RP 55. 

Although Mr. Aleksentsev testified in the administrative hearing 

he requested an interpreter at the interview with Mr. Crusch, the 

·Administrative Law Judge and Board of Appeals found otherwise. RP 17, 

HR 7. This finding is supported by substantial evidence and relates to an 

issue of credibility. Mr. Crusch did 'not refuse to provide an interpreter. 

Rather, Mr. Aleksentsev simply did not request one and Mr. Crusch had 

no reason to believe at the time of the interview Mr. Aleksentsev needed 

one. 
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Mr. Aleksentsev argues because he had an interpreter at the 

administrative hearing then it was obvious he needed one for the 

interview. Pet. 14. He claims he "could communicate generally with co

workers, but not understand in depth conversations." Pet. 15. There is no 

evidence in the record supporting this statement. The evidence shows Ms. 

Lee, her supervisor, Connie, and Mr. Crusch all believed Mr. Aleksentsev 

clearly understood their conversations. RP 36-37, 55, 75. 

Additionally, Mr. Aleksentsev's testimony that he requested an 

interpreter, not once but many times, before the interview with Mr; Crusch 

directly conflicts with the testimony of Mr. Crusch. The Administrative 

Law Judge found Mr. Aleksentsev to be "not credible in any material 

way." Findings of credibility should not be disturbed on appeal. Kraft, at 

717. ·Mr. Aleksentsev was not denied an interpreter because he did not 

request one. Further, the Department had no reason to believe Mr. 

Aleksentsev required an interpreter during the interview that occurred on 

March 31, 2009. Mr. Aleksentsev was not denied an accommodation due 

to a language barrier, and thus, he was not denied due process and was not 

discriminated against in any way. 
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E. RCW 74.34.200(3) Does Not Apply to Adult Protective Services 
Abuse/Neglect Cases and Appellant Raises this Issue for the 
First Time in This Petition 

The purpose of APS is to investigate complaints of abuse, neglect, 

and financial exploitation of vulnerable adults and to provide legal 

remedies to protect vulnerable adults. RCW 74.34.005. The Comi of 

Appeals noted: "Our public policy is to protect the- vulnerable population 

from all fonns of abuse." Aleksentsev v. DSHS, Slip Op. at 13, No. 31255-

I-III, 2014, WestLaw 1878459. Prui of protecting vulnerable adults from 

abuse is ensuring those who have abused the vulnerable in the past are not 

allowed to provide care to vulnerable people in the future. WAC 388-71-

0540(5)(3). 

Mr. Aleksentsev claims the Department did not follow RCW 

74.34.200(2). Pet. 12. However, Mr. Aleksentsev does not explain why 

failure to follow this statue should result in his petition being granted, and 

furthermore, he raises this argument for the first time on appeal. "An 

appellate court should refuse to consider a contention that is inadequately 

argued or is unsupported by citation to legal authority." State v. Lopez, 

107 Wn. App. 270, 278, 27 P.3d 237 (2001). Moreover, issues not raised 

at the trial court should not be considered by the appellate court. RAP 

2.5(a). · The policy behind this rule is to afford the trial court the 
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opportunity to correct errors as they are raised. This Court should not 

consider this issue. 

Even ifthis issue were properly before the Court, however, RCW 

74.34.200 does not apply to abuse or neglect investigations. RCW 

74.34.200 provides a cause of action for a vulnerable adult who has been 

subjected to abuse, neglect, or financial exploitation to obtain damages for 

their injuries. RCW 74.34.200(1). Section 2 of this statute notes that 

where there is a dispute about care or treatment the parties should use "the 

least formal means available to resolve the dispute." RCW 74.34.200. 

Here, the dispute involves a finding of mental ·abuse of Connie, not 

a dispute about care or treatment. Nowhere in RCW 74.34 did the 

Legislature require APS to resolve findings of abuse, neglect, or financial 

exploitation by "the least formal means possible." If APS followed Mr. 

Aleksentsev's suggestion that the problem should have been resolved by 

discussion and reassignment, absurd results would follow. The perpetrator 

would be free to move on to other caretaking jobs and harm other 

vulnerable adults. APS is not and should be required to resolve 

allegations of abuse, neglect, or financial exploitation by any means other 

than a complete investigation as dictated by statute. 
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IV. CONCLUSION 

This case presents no denial of due process, no conflict with 

appellate or supreme court case law, and no issues of substantial public 

interest. Mr. Aleksentsev cannot meet the requirements of RAP 13.4(b). 

Accordingly, the Petition for Discretionary Review should be denied. 
1---

RESPECTFULL Y SUBMITTED this !) (...· . day of September,